Our Vision

To make the Agriculture & Rural sector Economically Prosperous and
Financially Secure by providing a Safety Net in times of
Natural Calamities and large scale Variations in Crop Yields and
Fluctuations in Market Prices of their produce.
To utilise the most appropriate Modern Technology to Serve Farmers
• Efficiently • Quickly • Accurately
And
Make our Rural Clientele Safe & Secure by following transparent and
hassle free methods.
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Board of Directors

Performance Highlights
Particulars

Shri Suparas Bhandari
Chairman-Cum-Managing
Director

US $

Rs.

US $

Net Earned Premium

4553743

103990

1890950

43254

Net Claims incurred

2768451

63221

2825108

64622

(1000)

(23)

NIL

NIL

Operating Expenses and Other outgo less other Income 84520

1930

54089

1237

471446

10766

58829

1346

2173218

49628

(929417)

(21260)

74927

1711

107083

2449

457

10

128
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Amortisation of Premium on Investments

2052

47

502

11

Other Expenses

4810

110

6532

149

2241741

51193

(829240)

(18968)

557142

12723

NIL

NIL

1684599

38470

(829240)

(18968)

4066613

92866

968824

22161

2502

57

965

22

48445

1106

39612

906

6380813

145714

8129365

185952

628437

14351

449617

10285

13580

310

848169

19401

11140390

254405

10436552

238727

2000000

45673

2000000

45748

846150

19323

NIL

NIL

7265

166

NIL

NIL

206071

4706

NIL

8080904

184538

8436552

192979

11140390

254405

10436552

238727

Net Commission
Investment Income Apportioned to Revenue
less Expenses

Interest, Dividends and Rents
Other Income less Other Outgo

Profit before Tax

Shri A.V.
Purushothaman

Director

Shri T.K. Das
Director

Director

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

Rs.

Underwriting Profit

Dr. K.G. Karmakar

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Provision for tax including deferred tax
Profit after Tax
Assets:
Investments
Loans
Fixed Assets
Cash and Bank Balances
Advances and Other Assets

Shri M. Raghavendra

Shri K.N. Bhandari

Shri G.C. Chaturvedi

Director

Director

Director

Misc Expenses
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Share Capital
Reserve and Surplus
Fair Value Change Account
Borrowings
Current Liabilities & Provisions
Total Liabilities
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Shri S.K. Chanana

Shri T.K. Roy

Shri Naved Masood

Director

Director

Director

Shri S.S. Prasad

Shri Satish Chander

Director

Director

For the convenience of readers, Performance Highlights have been converted into United States
Dollar (US $ 1 = Rs. 43.79)
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From the Chairman’s Desk
A Joint Group was constituted by the Ministry of Agriculture on the directions of the Hon'ble Prime
Minister, to evaluate the crop insurance schemes being implemented in the country. I was nominated
as a member of the Group on behalf of the Company. The Group has submitted its report to the Government of India.
AIC engaged the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad to help evolve its long-term business
plan and to suggest a suitable organisation structure to implement the same. Its report has been received, and is being studied by a Board Committee.
AIC has also commissioned a study on the crop insurance schemes, and how the intended beneficiaries
perceived them, by the Institute of Development Studies, Jaipur, under the chairmanship of Prof. V. S.
Vyas, an eminent agro-economist.
AIC has secured a prestigious technical assistance from the World Bank for its premium-rating project.
The World Bank has engaged reputed international actuaries for the project. The study would be concluded during the current financial year.
This year, we have been able to extend crop insurance coverage to 1.8 crores farmers, up from 1.2
crores last year. This has been possible through sustained publicity and awareness drives undertaken
by us. We have publicised our activities and schemes through different media in all States and UTs.
Apart from these regular publicity efforts, the Company has also taken up a country-wide awareness
project for NAIS, titled "Krishi Bima Kissan Tak", wherein we plan to reach 1,00,000 villages in 3600
tehsil/talukas across 400 districts of the country. Crop insurance has already touched 540 out of about
600 districts in 23 States and 2 Union Territories. We aim to steadily expand the coverage-base, until we
have 6 crore farmers under our umbrella. The day we achieve this target, I shall have realised my
dream.
Suparas Bhandari

Chairman Cum-Managing Director

Dear shareholders,
It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all to the 2nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of your
Company, where the 2nd ANNUAL ACCOUNTS are being presented.
The seed of AIC, which was planted only two years ago, has already sprouted into a fine sapling, with
firm roots and spreading branches. This year was one of consolidation of operations, and of spreading
out in new directions. Many milestones were achieved during the period under review. This year the
Company posted healthy financials from its operations. The premium income increased from Rs. 369
crores to Rs. 550 crores. Further, after wiping off last year's loss of Rs. 82.92 crores, and making additional provisions of Rs. 93.85 crores towards "Reserve for Unexpired Risks" and of Rs. 171.58 Crores
towards "Claims Incurred But Not Reported", the Company could still earn a "Profit after Tax" of Rs.
84.62 crores. My dream is to see this sapling grow into a mighty tree, bringing shade and relief to a
significant portion of the rural populace.
India is a land of agricultural bounty. Globally, India holds a premier position in the field of agriculture. We are the second largest producer of rice, and the third largest producer of wheat. In pulses,
fruits, and tea, India is number one in the world; in groundnut and vegetables, India is number two.
The national poet, Bankim Chandra Chatterjee has saluted this eminence of Indian agriculture by coining the immortal epithet "sujalaang-sufalaang".
Indian agriculture, however, is heavily dependent on monsoon; - every third year sees an abnormal
rainfall incidence. An adverse monsoon or similar natural peril can spell disaster for an individual
farmer. The Indian farmer is forever carrying the cross of this weather uncertainty on his shoulders. It
is our endeavour to take this burden of uncertainty from the farmer on to ourselves.
To address the varied and diverse concerns of the rural community, we are devising innovative and
tailor-made products. We have already implemented the "Varsha Bima", "Sookha Suraksha Kavach",
"Coffee Insurance", and are set to launch "Wheat Insurance", "Poppy Insurance", and "Mango Insurance" very soon. We are also exploring the applicability of Remote Sensing Technology in crop insurance.

To extend our service to the remotest corners of the country, we are in the process of building up a
network of "Krishi Bima Sansthans", who will be our rural representatives at the doorstep of the farmers. We plan to have KBS's in the major districts in the country. This work-force will also generate rural
employment, and thus we hope to contribute to the country's social needs in our small way.
In this hour of achievement, we must pause to register our gratitude to the Government of India and
the various State & UT Governments, for their unstinting support, both in terms of policy and in terms
of finance. Our thanks also go out to the Directors of the Company, as well as all the employees, for
their dedicated service to the Company. We must thank the various financial institutions for the services rendered. We have received logistic and moral support from many other organisations and individuals, including the NSSO, NIA (Pune), various NGOs, Consultants, people's representatives at all
levels etc. We post our heartfelt thanks to them all.
To achieve such a daunting task, our own infrastructure also needs to be strengthened. The Head
Office of the Company has been shifted to a central location in a modern building, and has been equipped
with state-of-the-art-technology. In addition to our 14 existing Regional Offices, 3 more have commenced independent operations, - at Jaipur, Chandigarh, and Dehradun. We are also taking new premises for 4 ROs, namely, Kolkata, Lucknow, Patna & Bhopal. The Company has also developed its
own dynamic website.
We have come a long way in a very short span of time, but much more remains to be done. As the poet
Robert Frost had famously said, ……..
"The woods are lovely, dark and deep,
But I have promises to keep,
And miles to go before I sleep,
And miles to go before I sleep."

SUPARAS BHANDARI
Chairman cum Managing Director

AIC contributed its bit for victims of the devastating Tsunami by expeditiously paying the claims in
the affected districts in Pondicherry and Tamil Nadu.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report on the working
and affairs of the Company and the audited statement of accounts for the year ending 31st
March, 2005.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The summarised financial results of the Company for the period under review are as under:
Rs. in Crores
Current Year Period ended
Ended 31/03/05 31/03/04
REVENUE ACCOUNT
1.

Net Premium

455.37

189.10

2.

Net Incurred Claims

276.84

282.51

3.

Operating Expenses and Other
Outgo less Other Income

8.35

5.41

4.

Investment Income Apportioned to
Revenue less Expenses

47.14

5.88

5.

Revenue Profit/(Loss) (1+4-2-3)

217.32

(92.94)

Profit & Loss Account
6.

Interest, Dividends and Rents (gross)

7.49

10.71

7.

Other income less Other Outgo

0.05

0.01

8.

Amortisation of Premium on Investments Written Off

0.21

NIL

9.

Preliminary and other expenses

0.48

0.70

10. Profit before tax (5+6+7-8-9)

224.17

(82.92)

11. Provision for Taxes

55.71

NIL

12. Profit After Tax (10-11)

168.46

(82.92)

13. Profit Available for Appropriation

84.62

NIL

14. Transfer to General Reserve

83.84

NIL

15. Prior period losses & other adjustments

NIL

NIL

16. Balance of Profit C/F

NIL

(82.92)

DIVIDEND
During the period under review the Company earned a post tax profit of Rs.168.46 Crores
from its operations after providing for the required provisions and reserves. After adjustment for prior period losses, balance of Rs. 84.62 Crores profit left has been transferred to the
General Reserve. Your directors do not recommend any dividend in order to conserve the
resources of the Company to meet claims liability in the current year and to build up AIC's
financial strength for meeting its liabilities when crop insurance schemes being implemented
by it are brought under the actuarial regime.

OPERATIONS
The period under review was a period of consolidation and enhancing the operations of the
Company. The Farmers brought under the insurance net increased from 12 million to 18 mil-
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lion. AIC now insures the largest number of farmers in the
world. All past and pending
claims of NAIS have been
cleared by AIC. The National
Agricultural
Insurance
Scheme is implemented in 23
States and 2 Union Territories
with Rajasthan, Jammu &
Kashmir, Haryana and
Uttaranchal joining the
Scheme. The Company hopes
to bring in Punjab into its insurance fold soon. The
Company's operations are
now run from the H.O at New
Delhi and 17 Regional Offices.
A Research and Development Department has been set up at the H.O to design more farmer
friendly and affordable insurance products. An actuarial cell has also been created at H.O to
provide actuarial evaluation of various crop insurance products.
Several new products viz Coffee Insurance, Varsha Bima2005 and Sukha Suraksha Kavach,
which were either pilot projects or in different stages of development last year have been
launched during Khariff 2005. Basmati Rice Insurance and Poppy Insurance products are
ready and will be launched at the appropriate time. Development work is also on for insurance for perennial horticulture crops, plantation crops (tea, rubber, coconut, etc.), vegetables
and medicinal & aromatic plants.
During the year under review, the Company was able to wipe off last year's loss of Rs. 82.92
crores and still show a post tax profit of Rs 168.46 crores after making additional provisions
for Reserve for Unexpired Risks of Rs. 93.85 crores and Claims incurred But Nor Reported of
Rs.338.52 Crores. The year 2004 - 05 started with a delayed and deficit monsoon adversely
affecting the Khariff 2004 crop. The Rabi 2004 - 05 season was average. Agricultural production in the country grew at a meager 1.1% during the year. Despite such adverse conditions
AIC has shown encouraging results both in terms of profits and increase in business. This was
brought about through sustained promotion activities
and awareness campaigns
undertaken by the Company. The gross premium
increased by 148.8% More
farmers were brought into
the insurance net by offering
them better products and
services and through the
crop insurance education
and awareness programs
and sustained publicity
reaching upto village level.
The Head Office of the Company has been shifted to a
modern building and has
9

been equipped with state of
the art technology and all
modern conveniences. This
will be a great help in making its operations more efficient. The Board of Directors
has approved the introduction of better Information
Technology to provide
interconnectivity upto all regional offices through the
Company's IT project.
The Company was represented in the Joint Group set
up by the Ministry of Agriculture at the behest of the Prime
Minister to study crop insurance programs being implemented in the country. AIC
provided the group with statistical data and other technical inputs and helped the group in formulating its recommendations. AIC undertook a project to obtain first hand information on the farmer's perception of
the Crop Insurance Schemes being currently implemented and their insurance needs. Under
the project 15000 farmers, 3000 State Government Officials and 3000 Officials of other stake
holders like Commercial Banks, Regional Rural Banks, and Cooperative Societies were interviewed and their feedback analysed. AIC has engaged Prof. V.S. Vyas and his team at The
Institute of Development Studies, Jaipur to carry out a comprehensive study of the working
of crop insurance schemes. Such a study is being conducted for the first time in 20 years. The
Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad has been engaged to recommend a business
strategy and an efficient organisation structure and personnel policies for the Company.
AIC has secured a prestigious technical assistance from the World Bank for its premium rating project. The World Bank would engage reputed international actuaries for the project.
The study would be concluded during the current
financial year.
AIC contributed its bit for
victims of the devastating
Tsunami by quickly processing the claims in the affected
districts
in
Pondichery and Tamil
Nadu. As the whole district
was not affected, the claims
were treated as 'localised
calamity' and claims of individual farmers were
passed as a special case for
total loss on the sum insured.
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NATIONAL
AGRICULTURAL
INSURANCE SCHEME
(NAIS)
National Agriculture Insurance
Scheme is the main scheme being
implemented by AIC. The concerted
efforts of the Company towards educating the farmers and making them
aware of crop insurance products
during the period under review have
borne rich dividends.
During the period under review the
number of farmers insured under
NAIS grew 26% to 156.42 lac farmers; the area covered grew 53% to 287.9 lac hectares and
premium received under NAIS grew 45%. The figures reflect the data received upto date of
making this report and the number of farmers covered under the Scheme is estimated to cross
the 18 million mark when all data is received.
As a result of the various studies conducted a number of improvements in NAIS have been
suggested. The Joint Group has also recommended extensive improvement and enhanced
coverage under the Scheme. The technical aspects of the recommendations made are being
studied in detail and will be included in the Scheme where ever possible.

FARM INCOME INSURANCE SCHEME (FIIS)
FIIS is an extension of NAIS and protects the farmers income fluctuation arising out of either
low yield or low price or both. Government support was granted to the scheme. The scheme
was launched on an experimental basis in 18 districts of 11 states during Rabi 2003-04. FIIS
was continued on pilot basis in 4 states in 19 districts during Kharif 2004. The results of the
project were as under:
Season

No. of Farmers
Insured

Area Covered
(Hectares)

Premium Received Claims Paid
Rs.
Rs.

Rabi 2003 - 04

1,89,206

1,91,027

14,07,32,493

1,43,65,059

Khariff 2004

2,34,839

2,10,808

14,85,39,148

10,17,00,000

The Government has withdrawn this
Scheme with effect from Rabi 2004 - 05
season.

CLAIMS INVESTIGATION
Besides post harvest investigation of
bank's records, land holding records and
supervision of crop cutting experiments,
the Company also carried out concurrent
investigations to assess the area sown,
crop health and yield assessment while
the crops were still standing in the fields.
Use was also made on experimental basis of remote sensing technology in some
areas. These investigations have yielded
good results and were of immense help
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in monitoring the risks being underwritten by AIC.
The creation of a panel of investigators to investigate and assess claims is under consideration of the Board of Directors and is expected to be operationalised during the current year.

NEW PRODUCTS LAUNCHED
The Company has, during the period, after carrying out extensive research and study developed the under mentioned new products which will benefit the agricultural sector in times to
come.

A. VARSHA BIMA 2005
The Company's Rainfall Insurance product (Varsha Bima) was developed to combat effects of
adverse rainfall incidence. The product is aimed at mitigating some of the adverse financial
effects of rainfall variation on farm incomes. In this product, the percentage deviation in crop
output due to adverse deviation in rainfall is estimated and the farmers compensated as per
the deviation from normal. The advantage of the scheme is that rainfall data is available from
the rain gauge stations of the Meteorological Department and claims can be quickly processed.
Varsha Bima 2005 was launched by the Hon'ble Finance Minister, Mr.P.Chidambaram on 2nd
June 2005 and is being implemented in 125 (IMD) Rain Gauge Station areas across 10 states
during Khariff 2005. During the current season of Khariff 2005, 1.25 lac farmers covering an
area of 97.105 hectares have been insured for a sum of Rs. 5537.11 lacs and a premium of Rs.
314.6 lacs has been received.
B. SUKHA SURAKSHA KAVACH
AIC has launched a rainfall index based insurance product exclusively for the State of Rajasthan.
It was implemented in 23 districts for the benefit of farmers in draught prone areas. The
product has been designed to cover popular and widely grown crops like Gaur, Bajra, Maize,

Jowar, Soyabean and Groundnut which
are grown in semi arid climate of
Rajasthan.
C. COFFEE INSURANCE.
Coffee Rainfall Index & Area Yield Insurance has been introduced on a pilot
basis in the state of Karnataka, to protect the insured against the likelihood of
diminished coffee output yield resulting
from either shortfall in actual rainfall index within a specified geographical location and specified time period and/or
yield losses due to other non preventable
natural factors, upto the maximum sum
insured.
The product was launched by the
Hon'ble Minister of State (independent
charge), Statistics and Program Implementation Mr. Oscar Fernandes on 22nd
March 2005. 58 coffee plantations covering an area of 514.21 Hectares have been insured for
Rs. 169.43 Lacs so far.
USE OF REMOTE SENSING TECHNOLOGY (RST)
This satellite based technology was put to use on a pilot basis and will make available to AIC
independent, timely, accurate and reliable data which can be utilised in underwriting, risks
monitoring and claims processing. The Company has already commenced the pilot project in
3 districts i.e. one each in Andhra Pradesh, Gujarat, and Maharashtra for Khariff 2004 and 2
districts each in Karnataka and and Maharashtra during Rabi 2004 - 05 season and will provide AIC:
•

Crop Health Reports;

•

Acreage Sown ; and

•

Yield Modeling
If the pilot is successful in giving
the requisite data, RST will be introduced in our operations on a much
larger scale.

CAPITAL
The Company did not raise any further capital during the period under
review.

INVESTMENTS
The funds that became available
from the Crop Insurance operations
were invested by the Company as
per the IRDA Guidelines and the
directions of its investment policy
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under the supervision of the Investment Committee of the Board. Income from investments
during the year was Rs.40.97 Crores. AIC;s equity investments showed a capital appreciation
of Rs.72.65 lacs. During the period under review efforts were made to achieve the investment
pattern prescribed by the IRDA guidelines. With rising interest rates during the year market
yields of Government securities purchased earlier fell but coupon rates of fresh issues rose to
compensate the notional losses. As the Company investments in such securities is long term
the average interest income will not be effected. The Company participated in three auctions
of Government securities and also purchased Treasury Bills for investing its shorter term
funds. AIC also made limited investment of Rs.2.82 Crores in equity shares. Investments
were made in Power, Banking and Infotech sectors mostly during IPOs. These investments
have shown very good appreciation.

INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)
The Company is engaged in the crop insurance business and is, thus, governed, among others, under the Insurance Act, 1938, IRDA Act, 2000 and the Rules and Regulations framed
thereunder. The Company had obtained the necessary R-3 Licence in October, 2003 from
IRDA and the same has been renewed upto date. Its paid-up capital of Rs. 200 Crores conforms to the minimum required under the Insurance Act, 1938 for General Insurance Companies. The accounts of the Company for the period under review are drawn up in compliance
with the provisions of the IRDA (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors Report)
Regulations, 2002. An appointed actuary has also been appointed as required under the IRDA
Guidelines.

CLAIMS
Claims amounting to Rs.185.67 Crores were incurred during the year. Additional provision
for un-expired risks amounting to Rs. 93.84 Crores has been made in the accounts for the year.
A provision of Rs.338.52 Crores has been made towards claims incurred but not reported
based on actuarial valuation.

schemes. It can be hoped that wide decimation of information on our schemes would attract
more and more non-loanee, small, large and medium farmers to opt for insurance cover.
A massive Crop Insurance awareness campaign amongst farmers called "Krishi Bima Kisan
Tak" touching 25,000 villages in 3,200 Tehsils of 400 Districts is being undertaken. The campaign was launched in the State of Maharashtra by the Hon'ble Chief Minister Sh. Vilasrao
Deshmukh, in Andhra Pradesh by the Hon'ble Chief Minister Sh. Rajashekhar Reddy and in
Kerela by its Hon'ble Chief Minister Sh. Oommen Chandy. The object is to take the crop
insurance program down to the farmer's doorstep.

MICRO LEVEL MARKETING STRATEGY
In our quest to reach out to the farmer at his doorstep AIC has made plans to launch the
'Krishi Bima Sansthan'. The plan conceptualises using the resources of rural organisations
like the panchayats, self help groups, cooperatives etc. and the rural entrepreneurs to market
crop insurance schemes especially to non-loanee farmers who are left out of the net of rural
financial institutions. The KBSs are to be established at District levels and Agents placed at
Tehsil level on an outsourcing basis. This will help AIC to reach out to millions of farmers at
their village. This will also provide ample employment opportunity to rural youth.
The draft plan for establishing KBS is ready and will be put into operation after receiving
Board approval.

IT PROJECT
In its quest to improve efficiency in operations, AIC has computerised its H.O and all its
Regional Offices. The H.O and some of the major R.Os were equipped with the latest state of
the art Hardware and Software during the period under review. All officers at the H.O and
two officers at each R.O were allotted e-mail IDs. The Company's website was redesigned.
This is a dynamic website and enables AIC to interact with both outsiders and own offices
and officers. Software was also developed for salary accounting and processing of feedback

AWARENESS & PUBLICITY PROGRAMMES
Besides making the farming community, rural banks and local administration aware of the
benefits of crop insurance, the Company interacted with 15000 farmers, 3000 state government officials and 3000 officials of Commercial banks, Regional Rural Banks and Cooperative
Societies during the year under review to determine their insurance needs and obtain their
feedback on the crop insurance and rainfall insurance schemes being implemented by AIC.
The Company engaged in extensive awareness and publicity activities during the
year. Use was made of both
print and electronic media,
posters, audio visual vans
and TV. A number of awareness meetings were also
organised at state and district
levels wherein farmers, bank
officials, district level government functionaries and other
interested parties were
briefed about the services on
offer. A special effort was
made to give wide publicity
to the newly launched
14
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received from the surveys carried out. All available data is now computerised and can be readily
accessed and analysed.

duction of a small specialised team of officers for product development. The recruitment process has been initiated and will be completed during the current year.
Employee relations remained cordial through out the period under review and the Company
and its management received unstinted cooperation during this challenging and trying year.

AIC is hiring a reputed consultant to further augment its computerisation project. The object is to
establish all India interconnectivity. Effort will
also be made to establish interconnectivity with
the Nodal Banks and other intermediaries.

EXPENSES OF MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of AIC has played a very
active role in the progress of the Company. The
Board of Directors met six times during the period under review. Several committees of the
Board were formed for different functions and
to study various plans of the Company. There
were 6 meetings of the committees including
Audit Committee during the year.

M/S J.P, Kapur & Umbrai, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi were appointed statutory auditors of the Company u/s 619 B of the Companies Act, 1956 by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India. Various other firms of Chartered Accountants were appointed by CAG as
branch auditors for the different regional offices of AIC. The Board of Directors wishes to
place its appreciation of the guidance provided by them.

Mr. M. Raghavendra, Mr. K.N. Bhandari and Mr.
G. C. Chaturvedi, rotational directors who have
held office for the longest period, will retire by
rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment.

HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT

RESOURCE

The Company incurred Rs.8.45 Crores as expenses of management which is 1.45% of its gross
premium receipts.

The management's comments on the auditor's observations are given by way of addendum to
this report.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED U/S 217 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956
Additional information regarding conservation of energy is not applicable to the Company
being a service organisation wherein only minimal domestic power is used in running offices.
No foreign technology was imported or absorbed by the Company. The inflow or outgo of
foreign exchange during the year was as under:
Foreign Exchange Earned: NIL

Insurance, being a service industry, can run efficiently only on the commitment and dedication of its officers and employees. Besides officers
and employees laterally transferred from GIC and absorbed in AIC, a need was felt to augment the employee strength due to the increased operations and its complexities. AIC recruited 16 officers at AAOs level
during the year. In order to help
them in achieving the Companies ambitious plans along with
achievement of their personal
goals, the Company places special emphasis on training. During the year under review 14 employees underwent induction
training program at NIA, Pune,
one officer underwent training in
financial management in FORCE
School of Management, New
Delhi and one officer was trained
in actuarial subjects. A number
of officers were deputed to attend various seminars and workshops in their relevant fields of
specialisation. The Board of Directors has also approved the in-
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Expenditure in Foreign Exchange: NIL
No employee of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits specified u/
s 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 directors hereby confirm that:
i)

in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2005, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed alongwith proper explanations relating to
material departures, if any;

ii)

appropriate accounting policies have been selected and have been applied consistently
and that the judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year
and the profit of the Company for the period ended 31st March, 2005;

glish. Calendars, posters and other publicity materials of the Company are also bilingual.
Being a rural oriented company, AIC places a lot of emphasis on the use of the National
Language. Hindi Pakhwadas are held annually at the H.O and R.Os.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The directors place on record their deep appreciation of the excellent work and enthusiasm
shown by the managers, officers and other employees of the Company in very trying circumstances for the running, enhancing and streamlining its operations.
They are also grateful to RIBs, Banks, local administration officials of State Governments and
other intermediaries for their valuable contribution to the success of AIC's crop insurance
schemes.
The Directors also express their gratitude to the Ministry of Finance, GOI, Ministry of Agriculture, GOI, IRDA and the concerned officials of CAG for their guidance and support.

iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities;

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

iv) the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a 'going concern' basis.

Dated the 25th day of November, 2005

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION

Place: New Delhi

SUPARAS BHANDARI
Chairman-cum-Managing Director

During the period under review the Company made continuous efforts in the implementation of the Official Language Policy of the Government of India. Replies to a large number of
Rajya Sabha, Lok Sabha and Parliamentary Committee queries were prepared in Hindi. Most
press releases of AIC are both in Hindi and English. All crop insurance schemes implemented
by AIC and presentations prepared for them are prepared and published in Hindi and En-
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Management Discussion & Analysis
for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2005
1.

INTRODUCTION :

Indian economy is to a very large extent dependent on the agriculture sector. A majority of
Indians are still rural based. Growth in agriculture production directly influences the growth
of Indian GDP. A good crop season puts purchasing power in the pockets of a large portion
of the Indian population and therefore boosts the sales in the FMCG sector. This in turn
increases production and sales in the manufacturing sector and the services sector revenues
are also proportionately enhanced. The UPA Government has, therefore, laid a lot of stress
on rural development. The Prime Minister and the Finance Minister have time and again
reiterated their intent to focus on developing rural infrastructure and the budget for the year
earmarked a transfer of large resources for the purpose. Agriculture insurance plays a vital
part in giving financial security to the farming community and encouraging the use of modern
farming techniques, tools, seeds, fertilizers and other inputs. The availability of rural credit
for farming operations is also encouraged by the various crop insurance schemes being
implemented by AIC.
The year under review saw only a modest 1.1% growth in agricultural production. The
monsoons were delayed and deficient in some areas adversely affecting the Khariff 2004
yields. The Rabi 2004 – 05 was also only average. The Government’s efforts in increasing
rural credit and additional investments made in rural infrastructure did improve the situation
to some extent. The number of farmers covered by crop insurance schemes saw a dramatic
rise to 18 million and the sum insured also rose proportionately.
The upliftment of the rural economy is expected to be a top priority for the United Progressive
Alliance Government. This has been made clear by the statements made by the Prime Minister,
Dr. Manmohan Singh, the Finance Minister, Mr. P. Chidambram and leaders of the other
coalition parties. As the thrust will also be on reducing rural poverty, efforts will also be
made to increase agricultural production by making available rural credit. Crop and other
rural insurance products may be able to contribute in the government’s efforts at providing
financial security and thereby help in reducing rural poverty and indebtedness.
2.

INVESTMENTS & STOCK MARKET SCENARIO :

Although interest rates rose marginally during the year and there was also a mild but rising
inflation rate the placement of funds in time deposits in banks was unattractive. These
conditions are best suited to investments in manufacturing, construction and other basic
industries and products. Cheaper bank credits encourage capital purchases which result in
creation on long term values. Although there is a general mood of optimism in the Indian
economy investments have been slow in coming. Good IPOs are still few and far between.
This indicates the cautious approach adopted by industry leaders.
Although the stock markets are not considered good indicators of the state of the economy,
its sharp rise during the period under review does indicate the optimism and confidence in
economic development. During this period the indicative BSE sensex saw a sharp rise to
cross the psychological 7000 mark. There have thereafter been some fluctuations reflecting
the caution due to rising crude prices and hiccups in the government’s liberalization policy.
The sensex is now well on its way to stabilize at a fair level. Keeping in mind the sound
fundamentals and the excellent results declared recently most market watchers believe that
it will touch 8000 level by the end of this fiscal year.
The Company took advantage of the Bull market conditions to start a modest portfolio of
equity investments. The Company made investments in the IPOs of Banking, Infrastructure
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and Information Technology sectors. The investments have shown very good capital
appreciation and the same has been reflected in the ‘Fair Value Change Account’. Most of
AIC’s investments are still in government securities and other top rated debt instruments
and have not been effected by the recent market fluctuations.
3.

AIC’S OPERATIONS:

In the given situation, with the expected growth in agriculture, the Company is poised to
record a growth in business in all its existing and future schemes. It has a young, dynamic
and enthusiastic work force as a major Strength. New and innovative ideas and the
determination to relentlessly pursue its goals will see it grow in the service of the rural and
agricultural sector.
The experience of its initial years of operations revealed certain organisational Weaknesses.
A gap was felt in certain specialized skills in key disciplines and fields. The gap was bridged
temporarily by outsourcing certain routine functions, recruiting a small number of personnel
with the required qualifications and experience and seeking assistance of experienced
professionals in the field. The Company has engaged the services of Indian Institute of
Management – Ahmedabad as a consultant to conduct a study of its operations and
recommend the most appropriate organisation structure and to help the Company in devising
a long term business plan to achieve its ambitious goals. Once this report is ready, most of
these gaps will be filled. Training of the officers and staff of AIC will be pursued vigorously
to hone their existing skills and help them acquire new skills. The challenge is to sustain their
present level of enthusiasm with appropriate motivational inputs from time to time. A study
was also commissioned to study the current crop insurance schemes and to suggest
improvements and point out additional insurance needs of the farming community. The study
was carried out by a team of eminent agro-economists of the Institute of Development Studies,
Jaipur. AIC has bagged a prestigious technical assistance from the World Bank to provide
premium rating for the crop insurance products and give support in the ongoing research
and development activities. Being a newly incorporated company AIC has not yet achieved
the financial strength to be able to fully support its future programs. A few good years will
help it achieve the required financial muscle.
Rural and Agriculture Insurance is a largely unexplored field and enormous Opportunities
beckon AIC. The existing crop insurance schemes of the Company are not even covering all
the loanee farmers, let alone the crores of non-loanee, medium and large farmers spread
across the country. States are only notifying a limited number of districts and crops for coverage
under NAIS. The Company is making efforts to get the states to notify a larger number of
districts and obtain coverage of more crops. AIC is also making concerted efforts through
publicity and awareness programmes to educate the farmers about the schemes being operated
by it and the benefits of having insurance cover for their crops. A portion of crop credit does
not have insurance cover at present. This is a large untapped market which must be exploited
in the years to come.
The major Threat to the Company is not competition but a catastrophic loss in its initial few
formative years. A study of historic claims data reveals that claims ratios in crop insurance
are very high. Consequently the premium rates would also be prohibitively high when the
actuarial regime is put in place. Government support to its schemes goes a long way in
overcoming these problems. AIC is also making efforts to obtain reinsurance cover from the
Indian Reinsurer and from the international market to mitigate the risk of catastrophic losses
for its rainfall product. The only competition AIC faces are from small rural schemes being
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To develop a variety of rural insurance products.

•
To arrange tie-ups with financial institutions operating in rural areas for provision of
insurance cover to agricultural activities financed by them.

•
To bring corporate/contact farming under insurance cover.

•
To link-up with different sponsoring agencies like sugar factories and food processing
units who have an interest in agro products.

•
To bring under insurance cover High Tech Agricultural projects such as Horticulture
and Floriculture.

•
To develop a vast network of intermediaries operating in rural areas to keep AIC in
touch with the insurance needs of the farming community and to develop our business.

The growing rural economy will usher in a bright future for AIC and help it to serve its rural
clientele better ensuring prosperity and financial security to all the participants in this noble
endeavour.
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AGRICULTURE INSURANCE COMPANY OF INDIA LIMITED

run by other general insurance companies.
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CAG Report
COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL
OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 619(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956
ON THE ACCOUNTS OF AGRICULTURE INSURANCE COMPANY
OF INDIA LIMITED FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2005.
A. BALANCE SHEET
Fixed Assets (Schedule 10) - Rs. 4.84 Crore
1. The fixed assets schedule does not indicate gross block and accumulated
depreciation transferred to the Company by the General Insurance Corporation of
India. This is noting accordance with the format prescribed by Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority as well as the Companies Act, 1956, despite being
commented by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India on the accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2004.

C. Notes forming Part of Accounts
6. The fact that the Company received financial assistance of Rs. 1458.51 crore from
the Government for meeting out the certain expenses for the year 2004-05, as detailed
below have not been disclosed in the notes forming part of the Accounts:
Corpus Fund
A & O Expenses
Publicity Expenses
Premium Subsidy Fund
Bank Service Charges
Others

—
—
—
—
—
—

Rs 139.87 crores
Rs 0.05 crores
Rs 0.49 crores
Rs 28.15 crores
Rs. 23.51 crores
Rs. 1266.44 crores

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors (Schedule 13) — Rs. 112.98 Crore
2. A reference is invited to the Comment No. 2 (ii) of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India on the Accounts of the Company for the year 2003-04 wherein it was
pointed out that the interest earned on unspent balances had neither been credited to
the Govt. accounts nor the accounting policy in this regard disclosed.Despite
acceptance of the Comment by the Company (Novermber 2004), no policy in this
regard has been disclosed in accounts for the year 2004-05.
3. The balance of Rs. 83.44 crore including interest (Interest for 2004-05 Rs. 3.47 crore)
as on 31 March 2005 is not verifiable as the receipts of share of Government towards
indemnity for food crops (which is not meant to be met out of Corpus Fund) had been
accounted for in the Corpus Fund.
B. REVENUE ACCOUNT
Premium Earned (Net) – Schedule 1 – Rs. 455.37 Crore
4. The above includes an amount of Rs. 60.27 lakh as unearned premium, which
should have been included in the Current Liabilities of the Company. This has resulted
in overstatement of Premium and Profit of the Company by Rs. 60.27 lakh.The facts
and figures mentioned above may also please be furnished.
Claims Incurred (Net) – Schedule 2 – Rs. 276.85 Crore
Claims Outstanding at the end of the year Rs. 386.71 Crore
5. The above does not include an amount of Rs. 178.43 crore due to under estimation
of claimes Incurred but Not reported (IBNR). This has resulted in the understatement
of claimes Outstanding at the end of the year and overstatement of the profit of the
Company by Rs. 178.43 crore.

24

25

Auditors’ Report
To,

amounting to Rs.589,566 thousands and Liabilities amounting to Rs. 4,500,329
thousands of crop insurance business as given by GIC of India were accounted for by
the Company without any formal agreement/ scheme of arrangement between the
Companies and without obtaining approval from the Government of India. In view of
the aforesaid, claims paid for the period prior to April 1, 2003 has been debited to the
Revenue account and cannot be substantiated. Neither the balance outstanding from
GIC of India as at the year end aggregating to Rs. 138,728 thousands nor the net
transactions entered in the relevant account during the year aggregating to Rs. 1,690,202
thousands be verified;

The Members of Agriculture Insurance Company of India Ltd.
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of AGRICULTURE INSURANCE COMPANY
OF INDIA LTD. as at 31st March 2005, and also the Revenue Account of Crops Insurance
and the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash flow statement for the year ended on that
date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit
2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-statement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
3. We report that :
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and found them
satisfactory.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
(c)

In our opinion, proper returns, audited, from other regional cells have been received
and are adequate for the purpose of our audit.

(d) The Balance Sheet, Revenue Account, Profit and Loss Account and Cash flow
statement are in agreement with the books of account and returns.
(e) The actuarial valuation of liabilities is duly certified by the appointed actuary.
Assumptions and working papers for such valuation have been provided to us.
(f)

(g)

As per General Circular No. 8/2002 dated 22/08/2002 of the Department of Company
Affairs, the nominee directors appointed on the board of the company by public
financial institutions, within the meaning of section 4A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Central Governments are exempt from the applicability of the provisions of
Section 274 (1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Revenue Account and Profit & Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the
Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable to the Company and are also in
conformity with the accounting principles as prescribed in the IRDA Regulations.

(h)

In our opinion, the investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions
of the Insurance Act, 1938 and the applicable IRDA Regulations.

(i)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the said accounts read with the significant accounting policies and notes
thereon are prepared and give the information as required by the Insurance Act,
1938, the Insurance Regulatory Development Authority Act, 1999 and the Companies
Act, 1956 to the extent applicable and in the manner so required, subject to:
(a)
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(b)

Non compliance of Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
to the extent that deduction has been made at the rate of 10% instead of 12 % as prescribed
by the Act and non deposit of the same with relevant authorities, amount whereof
cannot be ascertained.

Give a true and fair view:
(i)

in the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2005.

(ii) in the case of the Revenue Account, of the surplus for the year ended on that date.
(iii) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
(iv) in the case of Cash flow Statement of the cash flow for the year ended on that date.
4. On the basis of our examination we certify that :
(a) We have reviewed the management report and there is no apparent mistake or material
inconsistency with the financial statements.
(b) The Company has generally complied with the terms and conditions of the registration
stipulated by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority.
(c) We have verified the cash and bank balances and investments, by actual inspection
or by production of certificates or other documentary evidence.
(d) No part of the assets of the policyholders’ funds have been directly or indirectly
applied in contravention of the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 relating to the
application and investments of the policyholder’s funds.
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005

For J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(VINAY JAIN)
PARTNER (M.No.95187)

The Company had been nominated as the Implementing Agency for National
Agricultural Insurance Scheme by the Ministry of Agriculture from April 1, 2003
vide its letter ref. No. 13011/02/2003-Credit II dated October 22, 2003. Assets
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MANAGEMENT COMMENT ON AUDITORS
OBSERVATIONS
AUDIT OBSERVATION

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

CAG Observations: Observation No. 1
A. Balance Sheet
1. Fixed Assets: (Schedule 10) Rs. 4.84 crore
The fixed assets schedule does not indicate gross
block and accumulated depreciation transferred
to the Company by the General Insurance Corporation of India in the prescribed format as per
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority as well as the Companies Act, 1956, despite
being commented by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India on the accounts of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2004.

The Crop Insurance Business under National Agricultural Insurance Scheme (NAIS) was transferred by the General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC) to Agriculture Insurance Company of
India Ltd. (AIC) w.e.f. 01.04.2003, vide its letter
dated February 3, 2004. The Assets & Liabilities
transferred by GIC included Fixed Assets amounting to Rs. 76,89,886.00 at various Crop Cells as well
as at Delhi Office.
As in the case of transfer of business, the value of
Fixed Assets transferred by GIC to AIC, vide its
above referred letter, have been taken as the opening balance in the books of AIC, which is as per the
applicable laws. Since the amount debited to AIC
by GIC for these assets is Rs. 76,89,886.00 only,
hence the value of these assets has been taken at
the above amount only in the books of AIC.
The original cost as well as the accumulated depreciation of the above referred assets cannot be
reflected in the books of AIC, since AIC has acquired these assets at their WDV, & hence these
assets are incorporated in the books of AIC at their
WDV only. Hence, the Preliminary Observation
Memo may kindly be dropped.
Our Reply:

OBSERVATION NO. 2
Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors: (Schedule 13)-Rs. 112.98 crore
A reference is invited to the Comment No. 2 (ii)
of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
on the Accounts of the Company for the year
2003-04 wherein it was pointed out that the
interest earned on unspent balances had neither
been credited to the Govt. accounts nor the
accounting policy in this regard disclosed.Despite
acceptance of the Comment by the Company, no
policy in this regard has been disclosed in
accounts for the year 2004-05.
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the opening balance of Corpus Fund as at
01.04.2004. In case of Karnataka State, opening
balance of Corpus Fund as on 01.04.2004 was
negative and hence no interest was payable for the
F.Y.2004-05.
In respect of Karnataka, there has been inadvertent
credit of State Govt. funds to Corpus Fund, which
pertains to claims for FC/ OS crops. However, the
discrepancy has been rectified during the year
2004-05 and the final closing balance of Corpus
Fund as on 31.03.2005 represents the actual
balance.
Moreover, in some of the States, funds have been
drawn from the Corpus Fund, with proper
authorization from the respective State/UT
Governments and utilized for adjustment of
Premium Subsidy, payment of A&O expenses and
Bank Service Charges.

OBSERVATION NO. 4
B. Revenue Account
Premimum Earned (Net)-Schedule 1- Rs. 455.37
Crore
The above includes an amount of Rs. 60.27 lakh
as unearned premium, which should have been
included in the Current Liabilities of the Company. This has resulted in overstatement of Premium and Profit of the Company by Rs. 60.27
lakh.

Unearned Premium of Rs. 60.27 lakhs is arrived at
after adjusting the excess collection of earlier seasons with the short collection of respective seasons,
the majority of which is outstanding for more than
three years. This policy is being uniformly followed
for the Scheme since its inception.
The accounting policy in this regard shall be disclosed from the next year.

As pointed out by C&AG and accepted by us, Interest earned for the FY 2003-04 has been credited
to the Corpus Fund and disclosed vide Note No.
16. Further, we have also credited interest on Corpus Fund pertaining to the Current FY 2004-05. As
per the past practice, no interest is credited to Government Funds other than Corpus Fund, because
that's a part of premium ought to have been remitted in advance rather than at the nick time of disbursement of claims, whereby we loose interest on
it, but this is as per flat rate regime under the
Scheme.
Though the Accounts have been drawn up on the
underlying Policy, the Accounting Policy in this
regard has been inadvertently left out. Noted for
future compliance. Hence, the Preliminary Observation Memo may kindly be dropped.

OBSERVATION NO. 3
Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors: (Schedule 13) Rs. 112.98 crore
The balance of Rs. 83.44 crore including interest
(Interest for 2004-05 Rs. 3.47 crore) as on 31 March
2005 is not verifiable as the receipts of share of

Government towards indemnity for food crops
(which is not meant to be met out of Corpus
Fund) had been accounted for in the Corpus
Fund.

Total interest payable on Corpus Fund for the F.Y.
2004-05 amounts to Rs. 3.47 crores. This is arrived
at by applying average interest yield i.e. 4.62% on

OBSERVATION NO. 5
B Revenue Account
Claims Incurred (Net)-Schedule 2- Rs. 276.85
Crore
Claims Outstanding at the end of the year Rs.
386.71 Crore
The above does not include an amount of Rs.
178.43 crore due to under estimation of claimes
Incurred but Not reported (IBNR). This has
resulted in the understatement of claimes
Outstanding at the end of the year and
overstatement of the profit of the Company by
Rs. 178.43 crore.

The figure of Claims Incurred But Not Reported
(IBNR) includes the claims for current seasons, for
which the claims are not yet reported as on the
Balance Sheet date, due to various reasons, viz.,
non-receipt of yield data from the State Govt., etc.
During the last year, outstanding claims (including IBNR) amounted to Rs. 295.53 crores, out of
which actual claims paid amounted to Rs. 185.67
crores.As regards the balance claims for seasons
pertaining to earlier periods, no IBNR has been
provided this year, as the Company has already
borne the actual claims for earlier seasons and no
more liability in this regard is anticipated. Moreover, claims approved but not paid for earlier seasons, are included under the head of outstanding
claims.
The figure of IBNR is as certified by the Appointed
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Revenue Account
For The Year ended 31st March ‘2005 Crop Insurance Business
Particulars

Schedule

Current Period
01.04.04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

1
-

4553743
477121

1890950
58829

(A)

5030864

1949779

2
3
4

2768451
(1000)
84520

2825108
54088

-

5633
42

-

(B)

2857646

2879196

C=(A-B)

2173218

(929417)

(C)

2173218
2173218

(929417)
(929417)

Actuary of the Company, and is calculated by him
only.
Observation No. 6
C. Notes forming Part of Accounts
The fact that the Company received financial
assistance of Rs. 1458.51 crore from the
Government for meeting out the certain
expenses for the year 2004-05, as detailed below
have not been disclosed in the notes forming
part of the Accounts:
Corpus Fund
A & O Expenses
Publicity Expenses
Premium Subsidy Fund
Bank Service Charges
Others

—
—
—
—
—
—

Rs 139.87 crores
Rs 0.05 crores
Rs 0.49 crores
Rs 28.15 crores
Rs. 23.51 crores
Rs. 1266.44 crores

NAIS is a clearly defined Scheme in respect of
liabilities of Government of India, State/UT
Government and Implementing Agency (i.e. AIC).
As per the provisions of the Scheme, the expenses
& subsidy recoverable from Government of India
& State/UT Government under various heads have
been accounted for in our books of Accounts.
We are of the view that the facts mentioned in this
POM have no material effect on the Accounts of
the company and hence no separate disclosure is
required in this regard.

1
2
3
4

Premium earned (Net)
Profit/Loss on sale/redemption of Investments
Others
Interest,Dividend & Rent -Gross
TOTAL

1
2
3
4

Claims Incurred (Net)
Commission
Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business
Expenses related to Investment
- Amortization of Premium on Investments
- Bank Charges related to Investment
TOTAL

Statutory Auditors Observations :
a) The Company had been nominated as the
Implementing Agency for National Agricultural
Insurance Scheme by the Ministry of Agriculture
from April 1, 2003 vide its letter ref. No. 13011/
02/2003- Credit II dated October 22,2003.Assets
amounting to Rs.589,666 thousands and Liabilities amounting to Rs.4,500,329 thousands of crop
insurance business as given by GIC of India were
accounted for by the Company without any formal agreement/ scheme of arrangement between
the Companies and without obtaining the approval from the Govt. of India. In view of the
aforesaid, claims paid for the period prior to
April 1, 2003 has been debited to the Revenue
account and cannot be substantiated. Neither the
balance outstanding from GIC of India as at the
year end aggregating to Rs. 138,728 thousands
nor the net transactions entered in the relevant
account during the year aggregating to Rs.
1,690,202 thousands be verified.

(a) As per the Union Cabinet decision "NAIS"
Scheme was introduced in 1999 where in it was
clearly directed that "an exclusive Organization
would be set up in due course, for implementation
of NAIS. Till the formation of a new exclusive entity "GIC of India" will continue to function as the
Implementing Agency. Accordingly as per the decision of the Task Force Committee set up for this
purpose, the PSU insurer Companies with
NABARD subscribed to and formed the new Company i.e. AICIL. The business was transferred to
the new Company as per the order dated 22.10.2003
of the Ministry of Agriculture. Since the formation
of the Company is exclusively for implementation
of NAIS no separate order or agreement was
deemed necessary. The Shareholders' agreement
also subscribes to the transfer of NAIS to AIC.

(b) Noncompliance of Employees Provident
Fund and Miscellaneous Funds Act, 1952 to the
extent that deduction has been made at the rate
of 10% instead of 12% as prescribed by the Act
and non deposit of the same with relevant authorities, amount whereof cannot be ascertained.

(b) Most of the employees are the employees who
opted to join AIC as per the option given and governed by pay and other benefits as per scheme notified by Govt. The PF deduction is made in accordance with the said Scheme. However we are taking steps to create our own PF Trust at which time
contribution in GIC PF Trust would be transferred
to the new fund.

Operating Profit from Crop Insurance Business
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Shareholders’ Account
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve
Transfer to Other Reserves
TOTAL

The Statement of Assets & Liabilities of Crop Insurance Business as given by GIC were incorporated in the books of accounts of the Company on
the basis of the Asset & Liability Statement as on
31.03.2003 and certified by the Statutory Auditor
of GIC on 23.01.04 in terms of the decision taken
mutually. Further reconciliation issues in respect
of staff related items are being attended to.
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005
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FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY
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Profit And Loss Account

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2005
Particulars

Schedule

For The Year Ended 31st March ‘2005
Current Period
01.04.04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

Particulars

1.

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserve & Surplus
Fair Value Change Account
Borrowings

5
6
7

2000000
846150
7265
206071

2000000
-

3059486

2000000

2.

3.
TOTAL
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Schedule

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Crop Insurance Business

8
9
10

4066613
2502
48445

968824
965
39612

11
12

6380813
628437

8129365
449617

7009250

8578982

SUB-TOTAL (A)
Current Liabilities
Provisions

13
14

SUB-TOTAL (B)

5086059
2994844

6633467
1803086

8080904

8436553

(1071654)
13580

142429
18930

-

829240

3059486

2000000

4.

5.

(929417)

74927
-

107083
-

457

128

2248603

(822206)

PROVISIONS (other than taxation)
a) Dimunition in the value of Investments written off
b) Amortisation of Premium on Investments

2052

502

OTHER EXPENSES
a) Expenses other than those related to insurance business
b) Loss on sale of Assets(Net)
c) Preliminary Expenses Written off
d) Legal expenses

277
7
4527
-

2
3
4527
2000

TOTAL

6862

7034

(C=A-B)

2241741

(829240)

557142
-

-

-

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
a) Interest,Dividend & Rent-Gross
b) Profit on Sale of Investments
OTHER INCOME
Miscellaneous Receipts
(A)

(B)

Profit Before Tax
Provision for Taxation:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax Asset (net)

(D)

557142

-

(E=C-D)

1684599

(829240)

846150

-

846150

-

PROFIT AFTER TAX & APPROPRIATIONS
Add:Balance of profit/(loss) brought forward from last year
Less: Adj.for Interest on Corpus Fund

838448
(829240)
9208

(829240)
(838448)

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET
Basic & Diluted Earning per share (EPS)
Number of Equity Shares
Nominal Value per share

8.38
200000
Rs.10/-

(829240)
(4.08)
200000
Rs.10/-

TOTAL
Net Current Assets (C) =(A-B)
Miscellaneous Expenditure
( to the extent not written off or adjusted)
DEBIT BALANCE IN PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

15

TOTAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
& NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

16

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005
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Profit after Tax available for appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Interim Dividend paid during the year
Proposed Final Dividend
Dividend Distribution Tax
Transfer to General Reserve

TOTAL

Contingent Liabilities
Claims, other than against policies, not
acknowledged as debt by the Company

-

1004

-

-

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

2173218

TOTAL

Investments
Loans
Fixed Assets
Current Assets:
Cash & Bank Balances
Advances & other Assets

Current Period
01.04.04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY
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Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2005
Particulars

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

SHARE CAPITAL

PREMIUM EARNED (NET)
5497199
NIL
5000
5492199
(938455)
4553743

3692122
NIL
NIL
3692122
(1801172)
1890950

1

2

3

Schedule 2
CLAIMS INCURRED (NET)
Claims paid
Direct
Add:Reinsurance accepted
Less:Reinsurance ceded
Net Claims paid
Add : Claims Outstanding at the end of the year
Less : Claims Outstanding at the beginning of the year
TOTAL CLAIMS INCURRED

4
1856702
NIL
NIL
1856702
3867053
2955304
2768451

3350662
NIL
NIL
3350662
2955304
3480858
2825108

Schedule 3
COMMISSION
Commission Paid
Direct
Add:Reinsurance accepted
Less:Commission on Reinsurance ceded
NET COMMISSION

NIL
NIL
1000
(1000)

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

39477
4330
4708
10090
1918
1558
2616
7031

22485
3577
140
6123
766
776
1574
1477

443

196

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
6687
205
2075
3383
84520

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
10992
1450
3510
1022
54088

Schedule 4
OPERATING EXPENSES RELATED TO INSURANCE BUSINESS
1 Employees’ remuneration & welfare benefits
2 Travel,conveyance and vehicle running expenses
3. Training Expenses
4 Rents,rates & taxes
5 Repairs
6 Printing & Stationery
7 Communication
8 Legal & Professional charges
9 Auditor’s fees,expenses etc.
a) as auditor
b) as advisor or in any other capacity,in respect of
(i) Taxation matters
(ii) Insurance matters
(iii) Management Services, and
c) in any other capacity
10 Advertisement & Publicity
11 Interest & Bank Charges
12 Others
13 Depreciation
TOTAL

34

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Schedule 5

Schedule 1
Premium from Direct Business written
Add:Premium on Reinsurance accepted
Less:Premium on Reinsurance ceded
Net Premium
Adjustment for change in Reserve for Unexpired Risk
TOTAL PREMIUM EARNED (NET)

Particulars

Authorised capital
150 crore Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each
Issued Capital
20 crore Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each

15000000

15000000

2000000

2000000

Subscribed Capital
20 crore Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each

2000000

Called-up Capital
20 crore Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each
TOTAL

2000000

2000000

2000000
2000000

2000000

Schedule 5A
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
(AS CERTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT)
Shareholders

Number of
Shares

% of
Holding

PROMOTERS - INDIAN
1)
General Insurance Corporation of India & its nominee
70000
2)
National Bank for Agriculture & Rural Development & its nominee 60000
3)
National Insurance Company Ltd. & its nominee
17500
4)
Oriental Insurance Company Ltd. & its nominee
17500
5)
United India Insurance Company Ltd. & its nominee
17500
6)
New India Assurance Company Ltd. & its nominee
17500
TOTAL
200000

35.00%
30.00%
8.75%
8.75%
8.75%
8.75%
100%

Schedule 6
RESERVES & SURPLUS
1.
Capital Reserve
2.
Capital Redemption Reserve
3.
Share Premium
4.
General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer during the year
5.
Catastrophe Reserve
6.
Other Reserves
7.
Balance of Profit in Profit & Loss Account
TOTAL

846150
-

-

-

846150
846150

-

206071
NIL
NIL
206071

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
-

-

Schedule 7
BORROWINGS

1.
2.
3.
4.

Debentures & Bonds
Banks(Secured against Deposits)
Financial Institutions
Others
TOTAL

35

Particulars

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

2

Schedule 8
Long Term Investments
1.
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills
2.
Other Approved Securities
3.
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual Funds
(c) Derivative Instruments
(d) Debentures/Bonds
(e) Other Securities
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate
4.
Investments in Infrastructure & Social Sector
5.
Other than Approved Securities
Short Term Investments
1
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills
2
Other Approved Securities
3
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual Funds
(c) Derivative Instruments
(d) Debentures/Bonds
(e) Other Securities
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate
4.
Investments in Infrastructure & Social Sector
5.
Other than Approved Securities
TOTAL (A)

Particulars

2247975
NIL

867974
NIL

28246
NIL
NIL
NIL
452525
NIL
NIL
NIL
926662
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
100850
NIL

394880
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
16326
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

4066613

968824

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
2502

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
965

2502

965

3.

4.

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

BORROWER WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Central & State Governments
(b) Banks & Financial Institutions
(c) Subsidiaries
(b) Industrial Undertakings
(e) Others(Loans to Staff)

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
2502

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
965

TOTAL

2502

965

2502
NIL

965
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

TOTAL

2502

965

MATURITY WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Short Term
(b) Long Term

NIL
2502

NIL
965

TOTAL

2502

965

PERFORMANCE WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Loans Classified as standard
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India
(b) Non-Performing loans less provisions
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India

Schedule 9
LOANS
1
SECURITY WISE CLASSIFICATION
Secured
(a) On mortgage of property
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India
(b) On Shares,Bonds, Government securities
(c) Others
Unsecured
TOTAL

36

37

5

5

6186513
NIL
193528
767

8014015
NIL
101227
14118

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

6380813

8129365

NIL

NIL

Reserve Deposits with Ceding Companies
Application Money for Investments
Prepayments
Advances to Officers & Staff
Advance Tax Paid & Taxes Deducted at Source
Others
a) Advance to NSSO
b) Advance Rent paid
c) Sundry Advances

NIL
NIL
3814
972
31402

NIL
100000
3767
722
31402

1800
NIL
4658

1800
1359
288

TOTAL (A)

42646

139338

148733
NIL
NIL
NIL
138728

60054
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL

104322

105009

3040
3877
186172
915
4

1901
4318
138956
NIL
41

TOTAL (B)

585791

310279

TOTAL (A+B)

628437

449617

1651.71
1659.46

7.75

39611.99

39,611.99
5,558.95
3,915.24

8.00

48,444.66

2,037.60
-

-

-

37,574.39
5,558.95
3,915.24

8.00

48,444.66

264.40
264.40

-

5,529.90

416.83
303.82
232.56

-

914.02

475.56
273.00
170.57

8.00

1,209.99

1,109.34
1,001.03
675.59

-

3,204.68

1,374.21
1,349.73
669.15

-

1,109.75

696.64
1,402.36
826.46
590.02

1,540.51
1,312.94

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

Schedule 11

-

35,073.96

33,501.82

31.03.04

41263.70
PREVIOUS YEAR

-

41304.74

41.04

1,651.71
54,003.61
2,068.61
14,808.52
41,263.70
GRAND TOTAL

Capital Work In
Progress

2,037.60

-

2,037.60

1,651.71
54,003.61
31.01
14,808.52
39,226.10
Total

5,794.30
Leasehold Improvement

-

5,794.30

-

71.26
1,217.84
Elec.Equip.& Fittings

488.09

729.76

-

110.42
1,482.99
Office Equipments

585.98

928.02

31.01

325.43
4,205.71
Vehicles

1,434.77

2,770.94

-

680.58
2,459.48
I.T. Equipments

2,054.79

404.69

-

236.44
2,228.82
Furniture & Fixtures

933.08

1,295.74

-

227.57
Buildings

33,729.39

2,885.08

-

36,614.47

31.03.05
adjustment
1.4.2004
As at
01.04.04

during
the year

Deduction/
Discarded

31.3.2005

the Period

31.03.05

As at
Up to
On sale/
As at

Particulars

FIXED ASSETS

SCHEDULE 10
38

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

CASH & BANK BALANCES
1
2

Cash (including Cheques, drafts & Stamps)
Bank Balances
(a) Deposit Account
(aa) Short term (due within 12 months)
(bb) Others
(b) Current Accounts
(c) Others (Remittances in Transit)
3. Money at Call and Short Notice
(a) With Banks
(a) With Other Institutions
4. Others
TOTAL
Balances with non-scheduled banks included in 2 & 3 above

Schedule 12

As at
Sale/
Additions

Less:
Add:

For

As at

Net Block
Cost/Gross Block

Depreciation

(Rs.’000)

Particulars

ADVANCES AND OTHER ASSETS
ADVANCES
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6

OTHER ASSETS
1 Income accured on investments
2. Outstanding Premiums
3. Agents’ Balances
4. Foreign Agencies’ Balances
5. Due from other entities carrying on Insurance
Business(including reinsurers)
6. Due from subsidiaries/holding company
7. Deposit with Reserve Bank of India
(Pursuant to Section 7 of Insurance Act, 1938)
8. Others
- Sundry Deposits
- Short Collection of Premium
- Premium Receivable
- Mediclaim Recoverable
- Others
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“Significant Accounting Policies” and “Notes forming part of
the Accounts” for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2005
Particulars

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

Schedule 13
CURRENT LIABLITIES
1. Agents Balances
2. Balance Due to other Insurance Companies
3. Deposits held on reinsurance ceded
4. Premium received in advance
5. Unallocated Premium
6. Sundry Creditors
7. Due to subsidiary/holding company
8. Claims Outstanding
9. Due to Officers/Directors
10. OTHERS
- Excess Collection of Premium
- Provision for Outstanding Expenses

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
1129752
NIL
3867053
NIL

NIL
1547887
NIL
NIL
NIL
2077469
NIL
2955304
NIL

68442
20812

29351
23456

5086059

6633467

2739627

1801172

179083
0
0

NIL
NIL
NIL

76134

1914

2994844

1803086

Discount allowed in issue of shares
Preliminary Expenses
Research & Development Expenses
Others

NIL
13580
NIL
NIL

NIL
18107
823
NIL

TOTAL

13580

18930

TOTAL

Schedule 14
PROVISIONS

1. Reserve for Unexpired Risk
2. For Taxation (Less Advance Tax Paid
& Taxes Dedcuted at Source)
3. For Proposed Dividends
4. For Dividend distribution tax
5. Others
- Retirement Benefits
TOTAL

Schedule 15
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

1.
2.
3.
4.
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Schedule 16
I

Significant Accounting Policies

1. Accounting Convention
The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Revenue Account are drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of Section 11(1) of the Insurance Act, 1938 read with the provisions
of sub-sections (1), (2) and (5) of Section 211 and sub-section (5) of Section 227 of the Companies
Act, 1956.
The Financial Statements also conform to the stipulations specified under the Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors Report of Insurance
Companies), Regulations 2002.
The said statements are prepared on Historical Cost Convention, on Accrual and Going Concern
basis, in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and conform to the
statutory provisions and practices prevailing in the General Insurance Industry in India. The said
statements comply with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as far as applicable
to the Company, except as otherwise stated or where a newly issued Accounting Standard requires
a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto in use.
The preparation of Financial Statements requires Management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of Assets and Liabilities and the disclosure of Contingent Liabilities
on the date of Financial Statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision
to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.
2. Revenue Recognition
2.1 Premium is recorded, net of reinsurance, based on assumption of risk, in the Revenue Account.
2.2 In case of Crop Insurance underwriting business, revenue is recognized in the year in which
the risk incepts/premium falls due. Premium has been accounted for up to the cut-off date, as
per NAIS, for receipt of premium from nodal banks, i.e. 31st May.
2.3 Premium refunds are accounted for on the basis of endorsements passed during the year.
2.4 Interest Income is recognized on accrual basis for all Time Deposits in Scheduled Banks and
Government Securities and Bonds.
3. Claims
All Expenses directly incurred in relation to assessment of claims in the nature of survey fees,
investigation charges, legal fees & expenses, court fees and other similar charges are debited to
claims.
4. Outstanding Claims
4.1 Estimated liability for outstanding claims in respect of Crop Insurance business is provided
based on intimations received up to the year-end and are based on survey reports, information
provided by Government Agencies, past experience and other applicable laws.
4.2 Provision for Claims Incurred But Not Reported/Ascertained (IBNR) is provided for on the
basis of Actuarial Valuation of net estimated liability for outstanding claims, as certified by
the Appointed Actuary.
5. Reserves for Unexpired Risk
Reserve for Unexpired Risk is made at the rate of 50% of premium received for the year.
6. Operating Expenses Related to Insurance Business (Expenses of Management)
6.1 Depreciation
(i) Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on written-down value method at the rates specified
in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
(ii) Depreciation is provided on addition/sale/destruction of fixed assets, on pro-rata basis.
Individual Assets aggregating to Rs. 5,000/- or less are depreciated in full, in the year of
purchase.
(iii) Depreciation on Leasehold Improvements is amortized over the period of the lease, from
the date of capitalisation.
6.2 Apportionment of Expenses
Apportionment of expenses of management, except for those directly related, has been done
in the ratio of Premium income of the Crop Insurance Schemes. Expenses relating to Investment
are apportioned between Revenue and Profit & Loss Account in the same proportion as stated
in Significant Accounting Policy No. 7.
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7. Apportionment of Interest, Dividend and Rent
The income from interest, dividend, rent etc. is apportioned between Profit and Loss Account and
Revenue Account in the ratio of Shareholders’ Fund & Policyholders’ Fund respectively at the
beginning of the year. For this purpose, Shareholder’s Fund includes Share Capital, Free Reserves
(as reduced by Miscellaneous Expenses), & Accumulated Losses (to the extent not written off) and
Policyholders’ Fund includes Provision for Outstanding Claims and Reserve for Unexpired Risk.
8. Investment
8.1 Prudential norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India are followed in regard to Revenue
recognition and income from investments, which have been accounted for on accrual basis as
at the year end.
8.2 The investments in Government Securities, Time Deposits with Scheduled Banks, Infrastructure
and Housing Bonds are shown at their historical cost (including premium paid o
n
acquisition and other related expenses), subject to amortisation and are considered as held to
maturity.
8.3 The investment in Equity shares have been shown at the fair value. Fair value for this purpose
is the last quoted closing price at NSE/BSE on the Balance Sheet Date, as per IRDA Regulations
and the net unrealised gain/loss on such valuation is recognised in the Fair Value Change
Account, and on realization, reported in Profit and Loss Account.
8.4 Pending realization, the credit balance in “Fair Value Change Account” is not available for
distribution.
8.5 Expenses relating to safe custody, collection of interest/dividend, bank charges, etc. on
investments are charged to Profit and Loss account and Revenue Account as stated in
accounting policy no. 7.
8.6 Dividend is accounted for as income in the year of declaration and Interim Dividend is
accounted for as income where the warrants are issued dated 31st March or earlier.
9. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets, including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost including incidental expenses
less depreciation.
10. Taxes on Income
10.1 Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration the benefits admissible under
the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.
10.2 Deferred Tax assets/liabilities resulting from ‘timing difference’ between book and taxable
profits is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or subsequently
enacted as on the balance sheet date. The Deferred Tax Asset is recognized and carried forward
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future.
11. Amortisation of Preliminary Expenses
Preliminary Expenses are being amortized over a period of 5 years.
12. Retirement Benefits
Liabilities on account of retirement benefits to the employees such as Pension, Gratuity and Leave
Encashment are provided for as per the Actuarial Valuation. Company’s contribution to Provident
fund is charged to Revenue account.

3. Sharing Of Expenses And Claims Of NAIS:
The Company was incorporated to exclusively underwrite Crop Insurance products. Claims and
Expenses of Management of NAIS are shared between the Central Government, State/Union
Territory Government, and the Company on specified basis. For the year under review, 20%
(Previous year 40%) of the total Expenses of Management incurred for NAIS are recoverable from
the Central Government and State/Union Territory Government amounting to Rs. 20293 thousands
(Previous year Rs. 28808 thousands).
Expenses (including Depreciation) for the NAIS shown under Schedule 4 are net of 20% (Previous
year 40%) share receivable from the Governments.
4. Accounts of The Regional Offices:
Accounts of the Regional Offices in the States are duly audited by Statutory Auditors appointed
by CAG and the same is incorporated in the accounts of the Company. Since, there is no separate
infrastructure and manpower identified for Uttaranchal, Rajasthan, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh
and Jammu and Kashmir; no separate records for expenses in respect of these Regional Offices
have been maintained. The same is included in the Expenses of Management of Head Office.
5. Premium:
The Premium income accounted for during the year is Rs. 5348048 thousands (Previous year Rs.
3551514 thousands) under NAIS, Rs. 148539 thousands (Previous year Rs. 140609 thousands) under
FIIS, and Rs. 613 thousands (Previous year Rs. NIL) under Varsha Bima Scheme.
6. Investments & Interest Accrued Thereon:
Out of the investments of the Company, those in Government Securities and Infrastructure Bonds
amount to Rs. 4038367 thousands (Previous year Rs. 968824 thousands) and their market value as
at the year end was Rs. 3943024 thousands (Previous year Rs. 968835 thousands). The investments
are stated at their historical cost and the premium paid on acquisition is being amortized over the
balance period of maturity. Interest accrued up to the date of Investment, paid by the Company
has been accounted for as “Interest Accrued on Investments” and has been shown under Advances
& Other Assets in the Balance Sheet.
7. Amounts Due To/From Other Person/Bodies Carrying On Insurance Business:
The amounts due to / from other person or bodies carrying on Insurance Business includes amount
due from GIC of India - Rs. 138728 thousands (Previous year Rs. 1547407 thousands due to GIC)
for transactions during the year relating to fund transfer, expenses incurred on their behalf, and
other miscellaneous recoveries / adjustments, which are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.
The adjustments, if any, will be made upon the final confirmation/reconciliation.
8. Taxes Paid In Advance:
a) Amount of Rs. 23060 thousands pertaining to Tax Deducted at Source and Rs. 355000 thousands
pertaining to Advance Tax Paid as at 31st March 2005, totaling to Rs. 378060 thousands, have
been duly adjusted against the Provision for Taxation of Rs. 557142 thousands as at 31st March
2005 (Previous year NIL).

II Notes forming part of Accounts
1. IRDA Compliance:
The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulation, 2002 have been complied with in the
presentation of these accounts.
2. Takeover of Crop Insurance Business:
2.1 As per the main objects for which the Company was incorporated, Crop Insurance Business
was taken over from the General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC), based on audited
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as on 1st April 2003 received from GIC vide their letter
dated 3rd February 2004. The Assets and Liabilities as given were incorporated in the books of
accounts of the Company and are subject to reconciliation and confirmation, including amounts
relating to retirement benefits and advances given to employees transferred from GIC.
2.2 AIC has been nominated as the Implementing Agency for National Agriculture Insurance
Scheme (NAIS) w.e.f. 1st April 2003 by the Ministry of Agriculture vide its letter ref. no. 13011/
02/2003 – Credit II dated 22nd October 2003.
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9.

b) Amount of Rs. 19942 thousands pertaining to Tax Deducted at Source and Rs. 11460 thousands
pertaining to Advance Tax Paid as at 31st March 2004.
Deferred Tax Assets/Liability:
The computation of Deferred Tax Asset/Liability in accordance with Accounting Standard – 22
‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ results in a Deferred Tax Asset as at the end of the year. However,
in view of the recent losses and no reasonable certainty relating to future profits, the same has not
been provided for on prudent basis.

10. Disclosures Forming Part Of Financial Statement As Required By Irda (Preparation Of Financial
Statements And Auditors Report Of Insurance Companies):
10.1) Contingent liabilities:
a) Partly paid up investments: NIL (Previous year NIL).
b) Underwriting commitments outstanding: NIL (Previous year NIL).
c) Claims, other than under policies not acknowledged as debts: NIL (Previous year NIL).
d) Guarantees given by or on behalf of Company: NIL (Previous year NIL).
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10.2)

10.3)
10.4)
10.5)

e) Statutory demand /Liabilities in dispute not provided for: NIL (Previous year NIL).
f) Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts: NIL (Previous year
NIL).
g) Others: NIL (Previous year NIL).
As at 31st March 2005, all the assets of Company are free from encumbrances, except for
the Government of India stock of Rs. 104322 thousands (previous year Rs. 105009 thousands)
deposited with RBI as security under Section 7 of Insurance Act, 1938.
Commitments made and outstanding for Loans, Investments and Fixed Assets as at 31st
March, 2005 are NIL (Previous year Rs. 5170 thousands).
Claims, less reinsurance, during the period up to 31st March 2005, paid in India are Rs.
1856702 thousands (Previous year Rs. 3350662 thousands) and outside India Rs. NIL
(Previous year NIL).
Actuarial assumptions for determination of claims liabilities is not applicable as there is
no claims payment period exceeding four years.

10.6)

Ageing of claims-distinguishing between claims outstanding (approved but not paid) for
more than six months and other claims are given as per the details below:
Particulars
Current Period
Previous Period
Amount(Rs. in 000’s)
Amount(Rs. in 000’s)
Foreign Inward Business:
Claims o/s more than 6 months
Claims o/s less than 6 months

NOT
APPLICABLE

NOT
APPLICABLE

Indian Business:
Claims o/s more than 6 months
Claims o/s less than 6 months

430522
51338

247698
1038201

10.7)
10.8)
10.9)

10.10)
10.11)

Premium less reinsurance, written from business during the Period under review in India
was Rs. 5492199 thousands (Previous year Rs. 3692122 thousands).
The Premium is recognized as per accounting policy no. 2. Reserve for Unexpired Risk is
recognised as per accounting policy no. 5.
Value of contracts in relation to Investments for:
a) Purchases where deliveries are pending: NIL (Previous year NIL)
(b) Sales where payments are overdue: NIL (Previous year NIL)
Operating expenses relating to Crop Insurance business have been charged to Revenue
Account, as the Company has only single business segment of Crop Insurance Business.
The historical cost of the investments valued on fair value basis, i.e. listed shares is Rs.
20981 thousands (Previous year NIL).

10.12) Computation of Managerial Remuneration is as follows:
Name

Designation

Gross Salary

Company’s
contribution to
Provident Fund

CurrentYear Prev.Year CurrentYear
Mr. Suparas Bhandari Chairman-cumManaging Director

508565

411607

(Amount in Rs.)

35815

Other Perquisites

Prev.Year

CurrentYear

Prev.Year

28139

43855

26711

10.13) The basis of amortization of debt securities is stated in Accounting Policy 8.2.
10.14)
a)
Unrealized Gain due to change in fair value of listed equity shares is shown separately
under the head “Fair Value Change Account”.
b)
Pending realization, the credit balance in the “Fair Value Change Account” is not available
for distribution.
10.15) The Company does not hold any properties for investment purposes.
10.16) Claims settled and remaining unpaid for a period of more than six months as on 31st March
2005 are Rs. 430522 thousands (Previous year Rs. 247698 thousands), as the State/UT Govt.
and Central Govt. share of claims, had not been received.
44

11. Separate Disclosure Requirement:
Since the Company is operating under only one business segment i.e. Crop Insurance Business,
hence no separate disclosure is required as per requirements of Accounting Standard – 17 of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and IRDA (Preparation of Financial Statement and
Auditors report of Insurance Companies) Regulation, 2002.
12. Related Party Disclosures:
The following are the related parties, as per Accounting Standard – 18 of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, in relation to the Company:
a) General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC) - Holding 35% of share capital of the Company:
During the year under reference, transactions relating to fund transfer, expenses incurred and
recoveries of loans and advances etc. were made and balance of Rs. 138728 thousands was
outstanding as on 31st March 2005 (Previous year Rs. 1547407 thousands due to GIC).
The transaction-wise details are as under:S. No.
PARTICULARS
AMOUNT (Rs. in 000’s)
(a)

Funds transferred

1429000

(b)

Interest credited

204631

NET BALANCE AS ON 31.3.2005

138728

b) National Bank for Agriculture & Rural Development (NABARD) - Holding 30% of share
capital of the Company:
During the year under reference, no transactions were entered into with NABARD.
c) The payments made to key managerial personnel are already reported in Note no. 10.12 above.
13. Retirement Benefits To Employees:
Details relating to past-liabilities on account of retirement benefits relating to Pension and Gratuity,
of the employees transferred from GIC on 1st March 2004, have not been transferred by GIC.
However, amount relating to past liability of Leave Encashment of employees transferred from
GIC, has been credited by GIC and duly accounted and shown under the head “Retirement
Benefits” in Schedule 14 of the Balance Sheet.
14. Computation of Managerial Remuneration As Per Section 198 Of The Companies Act, 1956:
Provisions of sub section (A) of Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII of Companies Act, 1956 are
applicable to the Company for calculating managerial remuneration. Managerial remuneration
of Rs. 5,88,235/- (Previous year Rs. 4,66,457/-) is within the limits specified in the said schedule.
15. Prior Period Income And Expenditure:
Interest income includes an amount of Rs. 204632 thousands (Previous year NIL) received
pertaining to the Financial Year 2003-04, being the amount of interest credited by GIC for the
amount of Assets and Liabilities transferred to the Company. Out of the above, Rs. 36923
thousands pertaining to the Corpus Fund has been credited to the said fund during the year.
Further, Operating Expenses include Prior period Expenses of Rs. 2087 thousands (Previous year
NIL) relatable to previous period, out of which Rs. 1962 thousands (Previous year NIL) have been
debited by GIC of India during the year.
16. Interest On Corpus Fund:
An amount of Rs. 80899 thousands (Previous year NIL) has been credited to the Corpus Fund
given by the Central Government and various State /Union Territory Governments, as the interest
earned during the year on the said fund, including Rs. 46131 thousands pertaining to the Financial
Year 2003-04, which could not be provided last year due to non-availability of information/details.
17. Claims Approved But Not Paid:
Claims approved but not paid as at the end of the year, aggregate to Rs. 3413266 thousands
(Previous year Rs. 13153903 thousands), out of which Company’s liability is Rs. 481860 thousands
(Previous year Rs. 1285899 thousands) and Rs. 2931406 thousands (Previous year Rs. 11868004
thousands) is the liability of the Governments, to be shared equally by the Central Government
and respective State/Union Territory Governments.
18. Reinsurance:
During the year, the Company entered into a reinsurance agreement with respect to liability for
claims relating to Annual Commercial and Horticulture Crops of Rabi 2004-05 season. The
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Summary of Financial Statement
Company paid a sum of Rs. 5000 thousands (Previous year NIL) as reinsurance premium and
earned a commission of Rs. 1000 thousands (Previous year NIL).
19. Borrowings:
During the year, the Company borrowed a sum of Rs. 206000 thousands (Previous year NIL) as
Secured Overdraft against Fixed Deposits with banks, and interest accrued and due thereon was
Rs. 71 thousands. The same were repayable within a period of 12 months from the date of Balance
sheet.
20. Earnings Per Share [EPS]:
The Earnings per Share (EPS) of the Company as per Accounting Standard – 20 of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is calculated as under:
2004-05

2003-04

Basic & Diluted EPS

Rs. 8.38

Rs. (4.08)

Profit after Tax

Rs. 1684599 thousands

Rs. (829240) thousands

Less: Prior Period Adjustments

Rs. 9208 thousands

NIL

Profit after Tax (net)

Rs. 1675391 thousands

Rs. (829240) thousands

Weighted No. of equity shares

200000 thousands

203245 thousands

Nominal value of share

Rs. 10/-

Rs. 10/-

21. Cash Flow Statement:
The Company has prepared cash flow statement adopting the Direct Method as required under
the IRDA regulations.
22. Summary of Financial Statements:
The summary of Financial Statements of the Company for the year is as per Annexure I.
23. Accounting Ratios:
The accounting Ratios of Company are stated in Annexure II.
24. Presentation:
Figures in bracket reflect negative figures.
25. Previous Year’s Figures:
Previous year figures have been regrouped and restated, as per the requirements of IRDA reporting
norms or else wherever deemed necessary, to make it comparable with the previous year figures.

Annexure - I
Particulars

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

5497199
4553743
471446
NIL
5025189
1000
NIL
(84520)
(2768451)
2173218

3692122
1890950
58829
NIL
1949779
NIL
NIL
54089
2825108
(929417)

68523
2241741
(557142)
(9208)
1675391

100177
(829240)
NIL
NIL
(829240)

6606681
6560151
4.62

6827328
6827328
0.86

2868260
2848059
4.62
2000000
2832570
11140390
4.62
8.38
14.16
NIL
NIL

2155510
2155510
4.97
2000000
1151830
10436553
1.85
(4.08)
5.76
NIL
NIL

Operating Results
1 Gross Premium Written
2 Premium Income Earned
3 Income from Investments (net)
4 Profit on Exchange Fluctuation
5 Total Income
6 Commissions
7 Brokerage
8 Operating Expenses
9 Claims Incurred (net)
10 Operating Profit/Loss
Non-Operating Results
11 Total Income under Shareholders account (Net)
12 Profit before tax
13 Provision for tax & Deferred Tax Liability
14 Adj.for Interest on Corpus Fund
15 Profit after tax
Miscellaneous
16 Policy Holders’ Account
Total Funds
Total Investments
Yield on Investments
17 Shareholders’ Account:
Total Funds
Total Investments
Yield on Investments
18 Paid up equity Capital
19 Net Worth
20 Total assets
21 Yield on total investments
22 Earnings per share (Rs.)
23 Book Value per Share (Rs)
24 Total Dividend
25 Dividend per Share(Rs)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005
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FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY
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Cash Flow Statement

Accounting Ratios
Annexure - II
Particulars

1

2

3

4
5

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Gross Premium Growth Rate
(Gross premium for the current year divided by
gross premium for the previous year)

148.89%

-

Gross Premium to shareholders’ funds:
(Gross premium for the current year divided by
paid up capital plus free reserves)

194.07%

184.61%

Gross rate of Shareholders’ funds:
(Shareholders’ funds at the current balance sheet date divided
by shareholders’ funds as at the previous balance sheet date)
Net retention ratio :
(Net premium divided by gross premium):
Net commission ratio
(Commission net of reinsurance divided by net
reinsurance premium)

245.92%

-

82.84%

51.22%

20.00%

-

1.54%

1.46%

Combined ratio:
(Claims paid plus expenses(net of subsidy) divided by
gross premium)

52.13%

77.98%

Technical reserves to net premium ratio:
(Reserve for unexpired risks plus premium deficiency
reserve plus reserve for outstanding claims divided
by net premium)

145.08%

251.54%

Operating Profit ratio:
(Underwriting profit plus investment income divided
by net premium)

47.72%

(49.15%)

103.98%

97.19%

11 Net earnings ratio:
(Profit after tax divided by net premium)

36.79%

(43.85%)

12 Return on net worth:
(Profit after tax divided by net worth)

59.15%

(71.99%)

6

7

8

9

Expenses of management to gross premium ratio:
(Expenses of management (net of subsidy) divided by the
gross total premium)

10 Liquid assets to liabilities ratio:
(Liquid assets of the insurer divided by the policy
holders’ liabilities)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005

48

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY

Particulars

Current Period
01.04-04-31.03.05
(Rs.’000)

Previous Period
20.12.02-31.03.04
(Rs.’000)

5489515

3578199

(1856702)
(4000)
(27187)
(1887888)
3601626
457
(355000)
NIL
3247084

(3350662)
NIL
(61816)
(3412478)
165721
128
(11460)
(22634)
131755

(12771)
16
(2997521)
440309
(248)
(6637)
(2576852)

(41305)
30
(1186626)
98207
(2)
(5716)
(1135412)

NIL
206000
(1537)
(2623247)
NIL
(2418784)
(1748552)
6380813
8129365
(1748552)

2000000
NIL
NIL
7135022
(2000)
9133022
8129365
8129365
8129365

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from premium income
Less:
Cash paid for claims payment
Cash paid for Reinsurance Premium (less Commission)
Cash paid for expenses
Cash generated from operations
Miscellaneous receipts
Income tax paid
Preliminary Expenses incurred
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets
Investments made
Interest Income
Expenses incurred
Funds Advanced
Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Share Capital
Increase in Borrowings
Increase in Loans given
Increase in Liabilities
Expenses incurred
Net Cash from Financing Activities(C)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of period
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
NET CASH ACCRUALS DURING THE YEAR

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Management Report

Additional Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Part of IV of Schedule VI of

In accordance with Part IV of Schedule B of the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies)
Regulations, 2002, the Management of the Company hereby:

for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2005

Companies Act, 1956
I.

Registration details
Registration No. 1

1

Balance Sheet

1

Date

3
Date

8

1 2

3

3

2

0

State Code 5
0

Month

5

1. Confirms that the Registration number 126 granted by the IRDA continues to be valid.

0 5

2. Certifies that all dues payable to the Statutory authorities have been duly paid.

Year

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands).
Public Issue
Rights Issue
N I L
N I
Bonus Issue
Private Placement

3. Confirms that the shareholding pattern and any transfer of shares during the year are in
accordance with the Statutory or Regulatory requirements.
4. Declares that the Management has not directly or indirectly invested outside India the
funds of the holders of the policies issued in India.

L

N I L
N I L
III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands).
Total Liabilities
Total Assets
1 1 1 4 0 3 9 0
1 1 1 4 0 3 9 0
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital
Reserves & Surplus
2 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 4 6 1 5 0
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans
2 0 6 0 7 1
N I L
Deffered Tax Liability
N I

Fair Value Change Account
L

7

Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
4 4

5

4 0 6 6 6 1 3
Net Current Assets
(-)
1 0 6 9 1 5 2

Deffered Tax Assets
N I L
Misc. Expenditure
1

3 5

8

0



5 1 0 6 2 4 9
Profit/Loss Before Tax
2 2 4 1 7 4 1

+

Total Expenditure

-

2

8 6

4

5

0 8

1

6 7

5

3 9 1

Profit After Tax



Please tick Appropriate box (+) for Profit (-) for Loss
Earning per Share in Rs.
Dividend Rate
8 . 3 8
N I L
V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

N .

A .

C R O P

I N S U R A N C E

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.P., KAPUR & UBERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Vinay Jain
PARTNER
M.NO. 95187
Place : New Delhi
Date : 25.11.2005
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FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suparas Bhandari
CHAIRMAN
cum MD

Avinanda Ghosh
DEPUTY MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

6. Certifies that the value of all the assets have been reviewed on the date of the Balance
Sheet and that in our belief the assets set forth in the Balance Sheet are shown in the
aggregate at amounts not exceeding their realisable or market value under the several
headings – “Loans”, “Investments”, “Agent’s Balances”, “Outstanding Premiums”,
“Interest”, “Dividends and Rent Outstanding”, “Dividends and Rent Accruing but not
due”, “Amounts due from other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business”,
“Sundry Debtors”, “Bills Receivable”, “Cash”, and the several items specified under “Other
Accounts”.
7. Confirms that the Company’s risk exposure consists of claims under NAIS, FIIS, and
Varsha Bima implemented by it. All the exposures under NAIS & FIIS are adequately
protected by the provisions in the Schemes which restrict the liability under NAIS to
100% of premium for food crops, and 150% of premium for cash crops; and under FIIS to
100% of premium. Reinsurance has also been ceded in respect of cash crops under NAIS.
Adequate provisions have also been made as per Actuarial Certificate.
8. Certifies that the Company does not operate outside India.

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover
-

5

Investments
4 8

+

2 6

5. Confirms that the Company is not required to maintain Solvency Margins for the two
schemes National Agriculture Insurance Scheme (NAIS) and Farm Income Insurance
Scheme (FIIS) implemented by it.

T.K. Roy
DIRECTOR

K.N. Bhandari
DIRECTOR

9. Confirms that the trends in ageing are not available for the preceding five years, this
being only the second year of operations for the Company. However, the trends in ageing
of claims received in the last two years are mentioned in the Notes to Accounts.
10. Certifies that the values of investments, stocks and shares, as shown in the Balance Sheet,
have been arrived at as stated in the Significant Accounting Policies, Number 8 and Notes
6 & 10.11 in Notes forming part of the Accounts.
11. Declares that the review of asset quality and performance is as mentioned below for
investments. No loans except loans to staff members have been granted by the Company.
Investments: The book value of investments of the Company as on 31st March, 2005 is Rs.
10245861 thousands and the realisable or market value of the Company’s investments as
on that date was Rs. 10429235 thousands. Further the Company has invested its funds as
per the investment pattern prescribed by the IRDA Regulations on investments and the
Company’s investment policy. Income from investments amounted to Rs. 552048
thousands during the financial year.
12. Confirms that:

Kanika Sharma
ASSTT.COMPANY SECRETARY

i.

In preparation of the financial statements, the applicable accounting standards,
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principles and policies have been followed alongwith proper explanations for material
departures.
ii. The management has adopted accounting policies and applied them consistently
(including those specifically required by various IRDA regulations) and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
operating profit and net profit of the Company for the year.
iii. Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938/ Companies
Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularity have been taken.
vi. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
v. The management has put in place an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of the business and it operates effectively.
13. Certifies that no payment has been made to individuals, firms, companies and
organisations in which the Directors of the Company are interested.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Date : 25.11.2005

SUPARAS BHANDARI

Place : New Delhi

Chairman cum Managing Director

Our Vision

To make the Agriculture & Rural sector Economically Prosperous and
Financially Secure by providing a Safety Net in times of
Natural Calamities and large scale Variations in Crop Yields and
Fluctuations in Market Prices of their produce.
To utilise the most appropriate Modern Technology to Serve Farmers
• Efficiently • Quickly • Accurately
And
Make our Rural Clientele Safe & Secure by following transparent and
hassle free methods.

